HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
January 23, 2012
1:30 p.m

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 1:30 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello
Representati ve M ke Doogan
Representative Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative David Quttenberg
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mark Neuman
Representative Tanm e WI son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Representati ve Sharon Ci sna; Elizabeth Sweeney Nudel man,
Director, School Finances and Facilities, Department of
Education and Early Devel opnent; D ane Barrans, Executive
Director, Postsecondary Education Conm ssion, Departnent of
Educat i on;

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

M chael Hanl ey, Comm ssioner, Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent; Mark Lewis, Acting Director, Division of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent; Bryan Butcher, Conm ssioner, Department O
Revenue; Jerry Bur nett, Di rector, Di vi si on of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnment of Revenue; Angela
Rodel |, Deputy Conm ssioner, Treasury Division, Departnent
of Revenue; Bruce Tangenan, Deputy Commi ssioner, Tax
Di vi sion, Departnment of Revenue.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



SUMVARY

Oper ati ng Budget Overvi ews:
Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent
Depart nent of Revenue

A"BUDGET OVERVIEW  DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND EARLY
DEVEL OPVENT

1: 29: 53 PM

M chael Hanl ey, Comm ssioner, Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnment provided nenbers wth a PowerPoint
presentation: State of Alaska FY2012 Governor's Operating
Budget Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent,
January 23, 2012 (copy on file). He observed that the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnment is governed
by constitutional provisions that require the departnent to
establish and maintain public school systens for all
children of in the state. The departnent's policy noves
from a school wide view to a child centered view, with an
expectation that all students wll succeed in their
education and work. The departnent's policy is also based
on the recognition of the child s place wthin their
community and larger society, as well as their role and
positive inpact beyond school doors.

Comm ssioner Hanley reviewed the Departnent of Education
and Early Developnent's m ssion: to ensure quality
st andar ds- based instruction to inprove academ c achi evenent
for all students. Al three branches of governnent have had
a chance to weigh in on the departnment's responsibilities
and obligation to the state's children. The first
responsibility is to develop performance standards. A new
set of performance standards have gone out to the Board of
Educat i on. The new standards go through grade 12
(previously grade 10). He enphasized that the bar has been
rai sed

Comm ssioner Hanley observed that the departnent's core
services are to provide:

e A conprehensive system of student assessnents that
adequately neasure how students perform in regards to
t he st andards;

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



« State accountability and oversight in a state that
relies heavily in local control; and

» Statew de education prograns to support the m ssion of
| ocal districts t hat i ncl ude ment ori ng and
pr of essi onal devel opnent for t eachers and
adm ni strators.

Conmi ssioner Hanley observed that the departnent also
receives federal funds though the Division of Teaching and
Learning Support, which offers school inprovenment grants
along with state support.

1: 33: 16 PM

Comm ssioner Hanley noted that the departnent's budget is
broken down into two categories: K-12 fornula funding and
agency funding. The total budget is $1.6 billion. He
observed that 95 percent of the departnment's budget goes to
K-12 formula funding. Agency operations nmake up the
remai ni ng five percent of the budget.

Conmi ssi oner Hanley reviewed the departnent's total
operating budget by fund source including foundation
formula funding, pupil transportation and school debt
rei nbursenment and American Recovery and Reinvestnent Act
funds. Fund sources were broken out: 84 percent general
funds (GF), 14 percent federal funds, and 2 percent other
funds (interagency receipts and nental health trust funds).

Comm ssioner Hanley noted that only tw percent of al
funds in their operating budget go to personal services.
O her contractual responsibilities, commodities, and travel
account for three percent. He reiterated that 95 percent of
the departnent's budget goes to: the foundation formula,
pupi | transportation, school debt rei mbur senent and
Ameri can Recovery and Rei nvestnent Act (ARRA)

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey explained that the departnment enploys:
332 full-time, 14 part-tine, and 8 non-pernmanent positions.
He interjected that teachers and staff of M. Educunbe and
the Comm ssion on Postsecondary Education are included in
t he position count.

1:35:14 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



Comm ssi oner Hanl ey broke down funding contained in agency
operations, which exclude the foundation program pupi
transportation and school debt reinbursenent and account
for five percent of the departnent's total budget. Cenera
funds account for 21 percent of the agency operations. The
majority of agency operations are federal funding (71
percent). He concluded that the state is not the main
driver of the departnent's agency funding.

Comm ssioner Hanley reviewed the Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnent's structure. He pointed out that the
department's conmm ssioner is appointed by the State Board
of Education and Early Developnent. There are five
divisions within the departnment, which includes Libraries,
Archives and Miseum and Munt Edgecunbe Boardi ng School.
The | argest conponent is the Teaching and Learning Support
Di vi sion, which derives fromthe departnent's core m ssion

In addition, Comm ssi oner Hanl ey observed that t he
departnent provides adm nistrative services to three boards
and commi ssi ons: Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practices
Comm ssi on, State Counci | on the Arts, and Al aska

Comm ssi on on Postsecondary Educati on.

1: 37: 38 PM

Comm ssioner Hanley reviewed conmponents of K-12 formula
progranms (95 percent of the departnent's budget). Boarding
home grants include: Nenana, Glena, M Edgecunbe, and
boarding for students in comunities that do not have a
hi gh  school . Youth and detention pr ogr ans provi de
educat i onal services for i ncarcerated youth. Speci al
schools include the Al aska Psychiatric Institute (API),
School for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing, Special Education
Servi ce Agency, and the Al aska Chal | enge Youth Acadeny.

Comm ssi oner Hanley expounded on the role of the Al aska
Chal l enge Youth Acadeny. The departnment provides the
acadeny with nanes of students that have dropped out of
school . The acadeny attenpts to reincorporate these
students into a program that provides success. Mst of the
students at the acadeny go on to receive Geater Education
Devel opnent (GED) diplomas. He stressed that |lives have
been turned around by the program

1: 39: 15 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



Representative Gara asked if there is direct coordination
with the Division of Fam |y and Youth Services (DFYS) and
the Alaska Challenge Youth Acadeny. Comm ssioner Hanley
indicated that the departnent did not have a direct
concerted effort in regards to working w th DFYS.

M. Mark Lewis, Acting Director, Division of Adm nistrative
Services, Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent,
affirmed that there are no first hand coordinating efforts.

Representative Gara observed the poor graduation rates for
foster youth. He stressed that in many cases foster hones
are not as good as the structured environnment offered at
the acadeny. He questioned if the departnent could
coordinate wth DFYS. Comm ssioner Hanley agreed but
pointed out that nost of the students at the acadeny are
focused on obtaining a GED not a diploma. Representative
Gara maintained that a lot of the youth under the auspices
of the Ofice of Children Services have fallen off and felt
t hat coordi nati on woul d be beneficial.

1:41:25 PM
Representative Doogan referred to the $62 million for pupi
transportation and asked t he formul a for pupi |

transportation. M. Lewis explained that the forrmula is in
statute, but he did know the exact formula. Representative
Doogan wanted to know how nuch goes where and if the funds
are mat ched.

1:42: 18 PM

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked if qualified school districts
received direct support from the federal governnent. M.
Lewi s thought that state funds provided the nmain source of
funding. Vice-chair Fairclough recalled being told that
private pupil transportation could not be used in order to
qual i fy for reinbursenent.

ELI ZABETH SWEENEY NUDELMAN, DI RECTOR, SCHOOL FI NANCES AND
FACI LI TI ES, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT,
explained that pupil transportation is state funded. She
did not know of any federal funds for pupil transportation

The dollar anmount is calculated for each district,
multiplied by the nunmber of students in the district. The
program runs under federal st andar ds, which require
conpliance with federal standards. She prom sed to provide

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



further information regarding the possibility of federal
f unds.

1:45:17 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that urban areas have a higher need
for funding.

Comm ssioner Hanley noted that education support services
represent two percent of the departnent's budget: the
Ofice of the Commssioner, Division of Admnistrative
Services, Division of Information Services, Division of
School Finance and Faculties, and general centralized
services such as capital projects. The State Board of
Education also falls wunder the executive admnistration
budget .

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey observed that the D vision of Teaching
and Learning Support is the |argest conponent and focuses
on student and school achievenent. The State System of
Suppor t conmponent provi des coaches in i ntervention
districts. The statew de nentoring program provi des support
for all first and second year teachers. He stressed that
the program has resulted in a higher rate of teacher
retention and student achievenent. O her conponents include
Teacher Certification and Child Nutrition, which is a
function of the USDA. The final conponent is Early Learning
Coordi nati on, which provides support for prograns such as
Best Begi nni ngs, Parents as Teachers and the pre-K program

1:48: 13 PM

Representative W/I|son asked how many contracts fall under
the Teaching and Learning conponent. M. Lews explained
that 118 professional services contracts were awarded. He
clarified that the executive branch does not contract for
enpl oyees. Each professional services contract nmust go
through a procurenment process. There are risk nanagenent
and liability issues, and personnel rules. Vendors are
hired to perform a specific scope of work. Each vendor can
contract with nultiple people to provide the service. The
departnent does not track on an individual basis. One
contract does not nean one person.

Representative WIson asked for nore information on the

mentoring system which contracts on a one on one basis.
M. Lewis affirmed that nentors and coaches are contracted

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



on an individual basis. However, not all work full-tinme.
They are paid a specific anpunt for a specific scope of
wor K.

1: 50: 07 PM

Comm ssioner Hanley reviewed the Conm ssions and Boards
conponent : Alaska State  Council on the Arts and
Prof essi onal Teaching Practices Conmm ssion. The conponent
represents a small portion of the departnent's budget and
excl udes the state board.

Comm ssi oner Hanley discussed M. Edgecunbe, which is the
only school run by the state. There are 400 students
|ocated in Sitka from 110 conmunities across the state.
There are over 10,000 alummi (95 percent Al askan Native).
He nmai ntained that M. Edgecunbe is a nodel of success

Conmi ssi oner Hanl ey revi ewed t he State Facilities
Mai nt enance conponent. The conponent includes interagency
receipts and rent from the Gold Belt building (Juneau),
Tal king Books Library (Anchorage), the archives storage
facility and library space in the State Ofice Building.
The departnent no longer rents space in the Anchorage
At wood Bui | di ng.

1: 52: 13 PM

Comm ssi oner Hanley stressed the inportance of t he
Li braries, Archives and Miseuns conponent, which provides
public library assistance grants, and represents just over
four percent of the departnment's budget. This conponent
provides public library assistance grants to libraries and
archi ves across the state.

Comm ssi oner Hanley discussed the Postsecondary Education
Comm ssion and noted that it heads wup the Al aska
Performance Schol arship program (APS) as well as services
student | oans. He stressed that both progranms are critica

for students to access postsecondary educati on.

1: 53: 54 PM

Commi ssi oner Hanley explained that $6 nillion has been
allocated in Alaska Performance Scholarship awards. The
governor's request would add $2 nillion based on 2,340
estimated recipients. The average award is just over

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



$3,400. The goal of just under 30 percent of qualified
students was reached. He expressed disappointnment at the
anmount of students still l|eaving the state [for school],
but felt that a greater percentage would take advantage of
t he schol arship in the com ng years.

Representati ve Gara recal |l ed a split bet ween t he
performance and nerit based schol arships. He asked if needs
based scholarships were awarded. Comm ssi oner Hanl ey
expl ai ned that needs based schol arshi ps were not awarded as
part of APS. The funding nmechanismis still in play but did
not affect APS. He noted that the Al askaadvantage program
of fered awar ds.

1:56: 00 PM

DI ANE BARRANS, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, POSTSECONDARY EDUCATI ON
COW SSI ON, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, clarified that the
commi Ssi on recei ved a $300 mllion gener al fund
appropriation in FY 12; all of the funds were expended.
There were slightly nore than 2,000 awards in FY 12.

Comm ssi oner Hanley continued to review the FY 13
governor’s budget highlights. He noted the inportance of an
al i gned assessnment system to neasure student's progress.
There has been continual increase in costs for test
devel opnent. There is a $750.0 thousand request to neet
contractual needs to continue (Conprehensive System of
St udent Assessnent (CSSA). He stressed that it is a smal
portion of the overall budget for the assessnent system

Comm ssioner Hanley observed that the Alaska Learning
Net work (ALN) was begun in the past year. The network is an
on-line delivery nodel that wll have a huge inpact for
students to access additional courses and course that wll
directly inpact their ability to take advantage of APS. The
first nineteen courses were developed wth input from
superintendents statewi de. Sixteen districts are currently
taking advantage of on-line courses; twenty-two districts

will take advantage of on-line courses in the second
senester.

1:58:33 PM

Vi ce-chair Faircl ough asked if the departnent was

coordinating on-line programs wth the University of
Al aska; or were they handled internally. Conm ssioner

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



Hanl ey observed that the deternent contracted with the
Chat ham school district. The Chatham School District
contracted wth the Wangell School D strict to run the
program The university decided not to manage the program
Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked if the university was
responsi ve. Comm ssioner Hanley observed that the sone
i ndi vi dual s were enthusi astic.

Representative WIlson asked if the cost would increase with
addi ti onal conmunities. Conmm ssioner Hanley explained that
course developnment is the greater portion of the cost and
did not think course costs would increase.

Representative WIson observed that the program is funded
through Anerican Recovery and Reinvestnent Act (ARRA)
stimulus funds and asked if state funds have Dbeen
identified for replacenent. Conm ssioner Hanley noted that
different avenues have been reviewed, but he enphasized
that one of the department's vision is to recognize the
need to incorporate technology in education. A nobdel was
put in place with ARRA funds. The goal is to continue the
nodel, but the departnent does not have the ability to
offer the program within the five percent of its agency
f unds.

Representative WIlson asked if there is a plan to charge
costs to districts. Conm ssioner Hanley observed that there
is currently a scholarship for every student who wants to
take a course. School districts are charged $150 for every
seat. The idea is to use the learning network and schools
to support students from both ends.

2:02: 02 PM

Co-Chair Thomas stressed that ARRA noney would not be
replaced with general funds. He noted that ARRA recipients
were told not to | ook for general funds for new prograns.

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey acknow edged that other funding should
have been pursued, but enphasized that allow ng technol ogy
to be the equalizer of opportunity around the state has
been and remains a vision of the departnent.

2:03: 32 PM

Representative Doogan asked the nmeaning of an aligned
assessnent system Commi ssioner Hanley explained that the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



department's first responsibility is to set a goal: state
st udent st andar ds. The second responsibility is to
determne if students are getting what they need to access
the standards. To that aim the departnent has devel oped
benchmark assessnments that start in third grade and
continue to tenth grade [new standards would go to twelfth
grade] in order to measure student's growh toward the
standards; to see that all the assessnents are aligned with
t he goal s.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough observed that the 2011 and 2012 state
standards are out for review She asked if the standards
neet the entry level for University of Alaska entrance
exans. Conmm ssioner Hanley anticipated that they would and
noted that the university will be vetting the standards to
assure that they are preparing students for college w thout
remedi ati on.

2: 05: 14 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough asked if the university helped
develop the standards. Comm ssioner Hanley clarified that
the university has been involved throughout the process,
whi ch began in February 2010.

Representative Joule asked if students that pass the
standards would be able to bypass renedial classes.
Comm ssi oner Hanl ey acknow edged the desire to bypass the
sub 100 level classes. The goal is to not have to take
remedi al courses.

2:07:31 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough asked which courses are on-line.
Comm ssioner Hanley detailed classes: Spanish | and 11,
German | and |1, Algebra, Calculus, Al aska Studies, and a

nunber of math cl asses are anong the cl asses of fered.

Co-Chair Thomas asked if APS recipients would receive
funding for remedial classes. Comm ssioner Hanley observed
that recipients are taking fewer renedial classes but
acknowl edged that the scholarship would pay for necessary
cl asses.

2:09: 11 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



Comm ssioner Hanley reiterated that the proposal would
fully fund year two of the Alaska Performance Schol arship
Program at $2.0 million. The departnent is continuing with
the state system of support as a core service of oversight
and accountability. There are currently 22 content coaches
and 1 trustee.

Comm ssioner Hanley spoke to the statewide |literacy
program He observed that third grade seens to be the
benchmark. Students need to be able to read by third grade.
The departnent wants to strengthen the early progranms. He
observed that last year was the first year of a literacy
institute that provided training for kindergarten, early
educati on and preschool teachers.

2:11: 04 PM

In response to a question by Representative (@Gara,
Conmi ssioner Hanley clarified that 2.5 is the |owest grade
poi nt average needed to qualify for APS. Representative
Gara questioned the nmessage of shooting for a "C' and asked
if the standard mght be raised. He asked if other states
gr ant per f or mance schol ar shi ps at t he "C' | evel .
Comm ssi oner Hanl ey enphasi zed that the nessage is not that
shooting for a "C' is where to go. The programis tiered

Each grade increase receives a higher level of funding. He
enphasi zed the higher performng students (3.5 - 4.0) would
go to college regardless of the program He felt that the
program would help the students on the edge or the mddle
t he nost.

2:13:42 PM

Comm ssioner Hanley reviewed the statew de Al aska Literacy
Program The departnment recognizes that parents have a key
role in helping their children be successful and prepared
for kindergarten. The departnent has devel oped "I am ready
skills", not all of which are academic. They are being
distributed to schools, health care clinics, pediatricians
and other areas where parents gather. The $300 thousand
request would also support a ready to read program which
is operated through the library to provide bags of books
for early literacy.

Representative W/Ison suggested that the prograns would be

in conpetition with Best Beginnings, which seenms to be a
successful program She questioned if the departnent had

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



| ooked into coordinating with Best Beginnings instead of
reinventing a new program Conm ssioner Hanley clarified
that the departnment works directly with Best Begi nnings. He
did not <considered the departnment's efforts to be in
conpetition. The departnent did not create the Ready to
Read program which is another avenue to reach nore
parents. He noted that Best Beginnings provides a book a
nont h.

2:15:38 PM

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey revi ewed t he Early Lear ni ng
Coordi nation Pre-K Program request of $700.0. This program
started as a pilot and has three years of data. He
enphasi zed the success of the program and noted that 78
percent of the kids in +the preschool prograns have
i ncreased by nore than a year's grow h.

Representati ve Edgnon pointed out the success of the Head
Start program and educating kids at younger ages. He asked
if the departnment envisioned it would play a larger role in
terms  of early literacy and education devel opnent.
Comm ssioner Hanley noted that the |legislature would
dictate the departnent's role, but expressed support for
the Head Start program He observed that their prograns are
not necessarily academ cally oriented.

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey recogni zed the value of early |earning.
He observed that the goal of the pre-K pilot programwas to
start with $2 mllion and add an additional $2 million a
year until the programreached $10 mllion reached.

Co-Chair Stoltze suggested sone parents would prefer not to
have their <children participate in early socialization
pr ogr amns.

2:19:40 PM

In response to a question by Representative Joule, M.
Lewis clarified that $700 thousand was a one-tinme itemthat
woul d restore the current level of $2 mllion when conbi ned
with the $1 mllion in the base and $300 t housand put in by
Co- Chair Hoffrman for intervention districts.

Representative Gara noted that the only increase for Head

Start within the |ast decade occurred under Governor Palin
and questioned if the department's support is reflected in

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



the budget. M. Lewi s observed that the budget supports the
governor's priorities. Representative Gara concluded that
t here woul d be no increased funds for Head Start.

2:22: 21 PM

Representative Costello asked how many third graders in
Al aska are reading at grade level. Comm ssioner Hanley
observed that it depends on which assessnent is used but
estimated a rate of 70 percent from standards based
assessnments. He recognized that the test score is not
necessarily a true recognition of proficiency. There is a
drop from the state's third grade test to the [federal]
fourth grade test: down to 40 percent.

Representative Costello asked if reading at a third grader
is linked to overall school success. Conm ssioner Hanley
observed that there are a nunber of studies and offered to
provide themat a |ater date.

In response to a question by Representative Doogan

Conmi ssioner Hanley clarified that state assessments show
standard growt h, but the national tests do not show as high
a level of success. He suggested that the real |evel of
proficiency |lies sonmewhere between the state and federal

results.

2:25: 19 PM

Represent ati ve Doogan asked why not change state standards.
Comm ssioner Hanley observed that there would be new
assessnments to go with new standards, but argued that there
may not necessarily be a flare in the assessment. The cut
score of 300 could be erroneous.

Representati ve Doogan asked how state scores conpare to
nationally adm nistered tests. Conm ssioner Hanley observed
that the national test is given in fourth and eighth
grades. Alaska is near the bottom when conpared to other
states. Alaska is 45th in the fourth grade rating.

2:26: 54 PM

Representative Quttenberg pointed to the high nunber of
prisoners with a third grade reading level. He surm sed
that the state could | ower prison population and recidivism
rate [if reading |levels were enhanced]. He stressed that it

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



is cheaper to put students through college than to house
them[in prisons].

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey enphasi zed that students don’t suddenly
tank after third grade. He clarified that the differing
results are fromdifferent assessnents.

2:29: 01 PM

Representati ve Neuman enphasized that only seven to eight
percent of those students that start high-school achieve a
four year college degree. Conmm ssioner Hanley recognized
the concern. Representative Neuman concluded that in |ight
of the "huge effort" to help students only a few students
are bei ng reached.

Co-Chair Stoltze pointed to the inportance of school board
el ecti ons.

2:31: 11 PM

In response to a question by Co-Chair Thomas, Conm ssioner
Hanl ey noted that the state's ranking increases in eighth
grade. Al aska ranks at twenty-third place for eighth grade.

Representative Gara asked the plan for increasing reading
proficiency by fourth grade, in light of flat funding for
early education. Comm ssioner Hanley explained that the
state is working on a statewide Response to Instruction
(RTlI) nodel of addressing student's needs where they are.
The pedagogical strategy is being changed in the primry
grades to address needs earlier. The departnent is
attenpting to strength skills when students cone into
school. Representative Gara asked how student proficiency
prior to grade school enrollnment would be changed w thout
addi ti onal f undi ng. Comm ssi oner Hanl ey anti ci pat ed
branching out existing pre-K programs to additional
districts and continued support of Best Begi nnings, Parents
as Teachers and Head Start prograns. The departnent is also
working on the "I am ready to read" skills. He concluded
that the department is doing what it can with the tools
that it has.

2:34: 11 PM

Representative Joule asked if the neasured results are
showi ng inprovenents in students comng into the system at

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



a higher rate of proficiency. Com ssioner Hanley saw
growh in all the prograns. Representative Joule wanted to
see data on Best Beginnings, Parents as Teachers, Head
Start and other community based progranms indicating that
t hey are successful.

2:36:51 PM

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey observed that data from the preschoo
prograns show that 18 percent of the students have nobved
from the bottom two quartiles to the top two; 25 percent
have noved out of the bottom quartile. Oliginally, 52
percent of the children in the state's pre-K program were
in the |owest quartile. These students have noved
significantly. Four percent show over two years of grow h.
Twenty percent show one to two years of growh. Overall, 78
percent of the students show above expected grow h.

Conmi ssi oner Hanley reviewed the departnent's ten-year plan
for the operating budget, which is used as a driver. The
plan anticipates increases in FY 15 - FY 22. The Foundati on
Formul a assunes an annual BSA increase of $100.00. The
Al aska Performance Scholarship Program is projected to be
fully funded. An annual inflation adjustnment of 2.75% was
i ncluded for contractual obligations in operating costs.

2:38:55 PM

Comm ssioner Hanl ey |ooked at the ten-year plan highlights
for capital projects. The annual construction and mgjor
mai nt enance itens would remain stable and funding for the
five schools to satisfy the Kasayulie settlenment are
anticipated over the next four years. He observed that 14
projects are currently being funded in the capital budget.
The departnent is also |ooking for funding for the Stratton
Library renovation and full funding for the State
Li braries, Archives and Miseuns Facility are included in
t he ten-year projection.

In response to a question by Co-Chair Stoltze, Conm ssioner
Hanley clarified that the Stratton Library lies on the edge
of the Shelton Jackson canpus in Sitka and was acquired by
the state two years ago. The intent is to maintain it for
future use and not allow it to fall into disrepair.

2:40:19 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



Representative Gara observed that there has not been a BSA
increase since the last year of the Palin adm nistration.
He questioned if the departnent would ask for an increase
prior to 2015. Conmm ssioner Hanley explained that the ten-
plan is based on trends and that he did not know what
policy any given adm nistrati on would pronote.

Representative Gara noted off budget increases for the pre-
K program that are not carried forwarded to subsequent
years. The governor's budget is currently the sanme per
student as two years ago. He asked how student achievenent
could be increased with a budget that would result in
teacher layoffs. Comm ssioner Hanley enphasized that the
departnment would continue to do the best it can wth the
funding it receives. He did not think there was a direct
correlation between funding and student achievenent but
acknowl edged that it isn't possible to continue to nmaintain
the same level of services with funding decreases. The
departnment will continue to focus on its mssion and core
servi ces, and support districts as best they can.

2:42: 37 PM

Co-Chair Thomas suggested that the Teachers' Retirenent
System (TRS) paynent be placed in the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnment's budget. He stressed that
the state pays for nore than just education; [teacher]
retirement is paid by the state. The final year of the
cost differential is in the proposed budget. The TRS
funding could be included into the departnent's budget so
that it shows in the foundation formula or make school
districts nmake their own paynents. He stressed that the
state is paying "nmassive anounts of noney”. Conm ssioner
Hanl ey acknowl edged that the [retirenent] liability is

goi ng up.

Representative Edgnon wondered whether each state agency
woul d conme before the commttee with the sane |evel of
detail. Co-Chair Stoltze suggested that it would behoove
ot her agencies to provide the sane |evel of detail.

2:45: 13 PM

Representative Joule asked whether the departnent had
di scussed the concept of regi onal boarding schools.
Comm ssioner Hanley replied that nodels had been discussed.
He believed the idea was inportant and had a significant

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 01/23/12 12:33 P. M



anount of power if brought to conmunities. He believed it
was a valuable nodel, especially if students could remain
in their community or part of the state. He stressed the
need for local conmunities to identify the need and drive
the discussion. He observed that there could be sone
uni nt ended consequences involving the shutdown of smaller
school s throughout the state.

Representative Joule observed that sone current schools
(Bet hel , Kotzebue) are heading in the general direction. He
opi ned that the bulk of the work needed to be conducted by
the legislature and stressed the need to have the
adm nistration help with the lifting.

Comm ssi oner Hanley acknow edged the power of the Bethel
program where students come in for a senester at a tine to
access courses they wuld not get in their 1ocal
conmuni ties.

2:48: 43 PM

Co-Chair Thomas pointed out that with the current rate of
growh in the operating budget the state would have a
deficit within two years. At that tinme, the state wll be
dependent on reserves.

2:49: 53 PM
AT EASE

2:58: 29 PM
RECONVENED

ABUDGET OVERVI EW DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Bryan Butcher, Conm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue provided
menbers with a PowerPoint presentation (copy on file).
Conmi ssioner Butcher noted that the mission of the
departnment is to collect, distribute, and invest funds for
public purposes.

Comm ssioner Butcher noted that there are four divisions
within the departnent. The Tax Division enforces the tax
laws of the state and collects and accounts for tax
revenues. The Treasury Division nmanages and invests state
funds. The Per manent Fund Di vi dend ( PFD) Di vi si on
adm nisters the PFD program and distributes the annual
di vidend paynent to eligible Al askans. The Child Support

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



Services Division collects and distributes child support to
custodi al parents

Comm ssi oner Butcher expressed his enthusiasm to work on
m ssions and neasures. He nmmintained that his departnent
woul d be proactive and engaged in the issue.

3:00:42 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the departnent is redirecting
funds or actually catching people for <child support
paynents.

Jerry Bur nett, Director, Di vi si on of Adm ni strative
Services, Departnment of Revenue noted that there is a
conbi nati on of neans by which the departnent has increased
its child support collections. Collections from permanent
fund dividends have gone wup, but the departnent also
collects from tax refunds, bank accounts and even safety
deposit boxes.

Conmi ssioner Butcher noted the developnent of a crimnal
investigation unit created frominteragency funds. Crim nal
investigators were nerged from child support, Permanent
Fund, Tax, and Treasury di vi si ons. He observed
ef ficiencies.

3:03: 09 PM

Comm ssi oner Butcher noted that in FY 11, the Tax Division
data showed that 98.5% of known taxpayers filed tax returns
and nmade their paynents tinely. In the Treasury Division
returns for 9 of the 10 funds under the fiduciary

responsibility exceeded the applicable 1-year t ar get
returns. M. Burnett explained that the Retiree Health
| nsurance Long-Term Care Fund, which earned 21.77 percent,
m ssed the bench mark of 21.9 percent. Conm ssioner Butcher
observed the departnent's long term investnent out
preformed the Al aska Pernmanent Fund.

3:03: 55 PM

Representative Costello asked how target returns are set.
M. Burnett explained that each individual fund with an
asset allocation has a target and bench mark. He offered to
provi de nore information.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



Comm ssi oner Butcher discussed the Permanent Fund Dividend
Di vision. He observed that of the 144,056 eligibility cases
opened in 2011, 88% were reviewed by Septenber 15 and
either closed, resolved, or awaiting information from the
applicant. He observed that providing tinely information
has been a focus of the departnent in order to reduce
waiting tinme.

Comm ssioner Butcher noted that in the OChild Support
Division collection of child support increased 3.53%
resulting in $3.3 nillion nore in disbursenents from the
previous fiscal year.

3:05:16 PM

Representative Doogan observed problems wth filling
auditor positions, which in turn have inpaired the
departnment's ability to audit oil conpanies' tax returns.
Conmi ssioner Butcher noted that the departnent is fully
funded for all but one master auditor position. They are
focusing on filling the position. Two commercial analysts
position were filled. The tax director's position was also
filled. The departnment is alnost at 100 percent in terns of
t he fol ks doing the work.

Representative Doogan asked the status of the backlog.
Comm ssi oner Butcher explained that the departnment is now
on 2007 [returns], from the switch from gross to net tax
(PPT). The pace seens to be faster than the first year of
the switch (2006). He felt that they would continue to
catch up, but cautioned that the results would not quicken
until the new data managenent systemis functioning.

Representative Doogan asked the results; is the state
getting nore or less noney than anticipated. Comr ssioner
Butcher could not respond. The first switch from gross to
net i s being wapped up.

3:08: 23 PM

In response to a question by Representative (Gara,
Comm ssioner Butcher clarified that the departnent has not
conpleted a full year of the Alaska's Clear and Equitable
Share (ACES) returns.

Comm ssi oner Butcher outlined corporations that are under
the Departnent of Revenue: Al aska Housing Finance

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



Corporation, Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation, Al aska
Mental Health Trust Authority, Alaska Minicipal Bond Bank
Aut hority, and Al aska Natural Gas Devel opnent Authority.

3:09: 55 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough expressed a desire to neet wth
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation prior to subconmmttee
heari ngs.

Comm ssioner Butcher 1ooked back at seven years of the
departnment's activities.

e Geater revenues were collected by the Tax D vision
with an increase of 190% FY0O5 &1, 951, 247,500, and
FY11 $5, 660, 500, 000.

e Funds under managenent by the Treasury D vision have
doubl ed wth an i ncrease of 101% 12/ 31/ 2004
$20, 448, 418, 000, and 12/ 31/2011 $41, 062, 345, 000

e The Nunmber of Permanent Fund dividends paid to
Al askans increased 8% FYO5 599,243 FY12 647,549
(total estimated for 2011 divi dend)

e The nunber of child support cases increased 4% while
the anount of child support distributed to custodial
parents increased 15% FFY0O5 45,259 cases $98, 644, 813
di sbursed F11 47,044 cases $113, 330, 053 di sbursed

3:11: 21 PM

Comm ssi oner Butcher observed the growh in state funds
over the past seven years.

In response to a question by Representative Doogan,

Comm ssi oner Butcher explained that GeFONSI is an acronym
for general fund other non-segregated investnents. M.

Burnett added that GeFONSI funds include the Statutory
Budget Reserve Account (SBR), Public School Fund (forward
funding for education), Al aska Housing Capital Corporation
Funds and 100 different accounts. These are accounts that

need to be available to the legislature and fairly |iquid.

In response to a question by Representative Doogan, M.

Burnett explained that there are sonme portions of the funds
that are not available for expenditure but that for the
nost part the funds are avail abl e.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



3:13:52 PM

Representative Costello referred to the rate of return for
t he Constitutional Budget Reserve Account (CBR) and wonder
what kinds of investnents are in the fund. Conm ssioner
But cher explained that the fund is broken down between
short (2.64% and long (21.13% terminvestnents.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked the approximate percentage of
the split. M. Burnett stated that the split in the CBR is
approximately 50/50 at the end of the year: $5 billion
short and $5 billion |ong.

Vice-chair Fairclough questioned if it were possible to
borrow noney for the short termand invest in the long term
hi gher rate of return. Comm ssioner Butcher explained that
the departnment has been cautious in arbitrage due to
volatility.

3:16: 47 PM

Comm ssioner Butcher spoke to the benefit of the AAA
upgrade from Standard and Poors. He observed that his
staff, Angel a  Rodel |, Deputy  Comm ssi oner, Treasury
Di vi sion, |ooked at the 2003 bond deals and observed that
they could be refunded; they received a net present value
savings of $27 mllion savings. The state received a | ow
spread and high sale due to the AAA rating. He observed
t hat Al askans bought $26 of the $175 mllion sold.

3:18:52 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked it the Carlson noney held in escrow
earned interest. M. Burnett explained that the funds were
hel d externally fromthe state and could not comment on the
amount of interest earned.

Comm ssi oner Butcher observed the statewide growth of the
department, which has had an average annual growh rate
fromFY 05 to FY 13 of 6.6% (under the state average). The
departnent's budget is under one percent of total state Gr.

3:19: 45 PM

Comm ssi oner But cher reviewed the departnent's fund
sources. Permanent Fund corporate receipts are the |argest

House Fi nance Conmmittee 21 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



fund source at just over a third. Federal funds are just
under a quarter. The departnent also receives funds from
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation. The Al aska Retirenent
Managenent (ARM Board pension funds, nine percent are
undesi gnated  general f unds, and three percent are
desi gnat ed general funds.

Comm ssi oner Butcher |ooked at the departnent separated by
program The Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation is the

largest at $119 nmillion; the Al aska Housing Finance
Corporation is the second largest at $94 million. The Tax
Division is $16.2 mllion and the Division of Treasury is
$10 mllion.

Comm ssioner Butcher reviewed the two nmmjor initiatives
funded in FY 12: Established Crimnal Investigations Unit
1,600.0 I/A;, and Tax Revenue Mnagenent System Capital
Fundi ng 34, 700. 0 G-.

Comm ssioner Butcher reviewed the Tax Revenue WManagenent
System (TRMS), which received a $34.7 million appropriation
| ast session. A 3rd party project nmanager was brought on
board during the summer of 2011 to assist with witing a
request for proposal (RFP) to select a contractor. The
departnment plans to release the RFP in late February or
early March 2012. The inplenentation contractor should be
on board by August 2012. The departnent will inplenent a

Commer ci al O f-the-Shelf (COTS) system as opposed to
building one in house. He noted that npbst states use the
COTS system and indicated that it would result in savings.
There will be a phased inplenmentation of the Tax Division’s
22 tax systens and a two to five year tineline for full
i npl enmentation. He stressed the need to take the tinme to do
things right.

3:23:30 PM

Representative Neuman observed that the Al aska Natural Gas
Devel opnent Authority (ANGDA) is funded at $436 thousand
and asked the admnistration's intent for future years.
Conmi ssi oner Butcher observed that the executive director
resigned. There is an interim director and ANGA is in the
FY 13 budget. He noted that the governor has had
di scussi ons about bringing agencies working on the gasline
together. He observed that he has worked wth Daniel
Sul | i van, Conmi ssioner, Departnent of Natural Resources to
prevent duplication.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 22 01/23/12 12:33 P. M



3:25:27 PM

M. Burnett reviewed key FY 13 budget changes not in the
base. The departnent added five project positions for the
Long Term Care Orbudsman office at $25.9 G- The
appropriation reduces vacancy and allows devel opnent of an
online Learning Mnagenent System The Al aska Permanent
Fund Corporation (APFC) has asked for $340.0 in corporate
recei pts to provide performance based salary increases, and
increased due diligence. The <corporation is not under
enpl oyee contracts; t herefore mar ket based sal ary
adj ustments are needed. The Treasury Division has requested
$399.4 G- to nmanage the increased Constitutional Budget
Reserve managenent costs because it has grown in value and
t he Power Cost Equalization Fund has al so grown.

3:27:09 PM

In response to a question by Co-Chair Thomas, M. Burnett
clarified that each of the funds has sone externa
managenent fees. The Treasury Division manages a variety of
funds that are allocated on a cost allocation plan to each.
M. Burnett noted that APFC earned 21 percent in FY 11 and
is asking for additional external managenent fees

In response to a question by Representative Doogan, M.
Burnett affirnmed that CBR nanagenent costs are a direct
function of increases to the fund. He added that at the end
of FY 10, the CBR was fully funded. The legislature no
| onger had an obligation to the fund. The fund has been
managed with general fund dollars since so that there are
no draws fromthe account.

3:28:31 PM

M. Burnett reviewed the departnent's FY 13 capita
request. He observed that there are three requests for the
Child Support Services Division:

« Case Managenent Modernization - $1080.0 Fed/557.0 GF
(The federal government pays 66 percent of the

programn ;
* Child Support Conputer Replacenent - 134.6 Fed/69.4
GF;, and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



e Child Support Interactive Voice Response System -
151.8Fed/78.2 G-. The current system is no |onger
bei ng support ed.

M. Burnett reviewed additional capital requests. The
Per manent Fund Corporation has a request for office wring
- 50.0 PF earnings. He noted that the Al aska Housing
Fi nance Cor por ati on has mul tiple proj ects totaling
109, 000.0 G-/ 850.0 Ot her/11, 800 Federal funds.

e $31.5 million Watherization

e $21 mllion Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corp

e $20 mllion Hone Energy Rebate

e $8 mllion Honel ess Assistance Program

e $7 mllion Suppl enmental Housing Devel opnent Program

e $6 mllion Teacher, Health, Public Safety and VPSO
Housi ng Loans

e $4.5 million Senior Ctizen Housing Devel opnent
M. Burnett observed that there are also a nunber of
projects for internal progranms to maintain buildings the
corporation owns.

3:30:44 PM

M. Burnett reviewed the departnent's ten-year expenditure
projections. The baseline for the departnment’s operations
costs were increased by using a 2.75% annual inflation
factor. The inflation calculation does not include personal
services or investnent nmanagenent fees, but the value of
t he various funds were nodel ed for the estimted fees.

M. Burnett observed that AHFC and APFC are |arge
contributors to the departnment's ten-year plan. The Al aska
Housi ng Finance Corporation's (AHFC) operations costs were
increased by using a 2.75% annual inflation factor. The
capi tal budget assunes that the corporation’s earnings wll

resunme to pre-recession levels. The weatherization program
assunes the state will contribute $100 million annually to
mai ntain the current program The Alaska Pernmanent Fund
(APF) value was grown wusing nedian capital mar ket
expect ati ons. Ext er nal i nvest ment manager fees were
projected at a cost of 26 bases points or the total fund
val ue.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 24 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



3:32:17 PM

M. Burnett noted that there is a bunp in the early portion
of the ten-year plan in the all funds graph due to the
inclusion of nodernization of the Child Support Services
Division's information technology system and the Al aska
Gasline Devel opnent Corporation capital cost. The bunp is
taken out in all operating funds because the funds are
grow ng. He pointed out that the general fund line is not
quite flat, but the departnent's general fund growh has
been below that of the state. The Tax Division is the
greatest cost of general funds; the second is the match for
child support.

3:33:41 PM

Comm ssi oner Butcher enphasized that the Tax Division is
actively engaged in increasing the efficiency of tax
adm nistration and tinmely access to information necessary
for assisting with tax policy decisions nmade by the
| egi sl ature. The department is working on a five year "l ook
back" to tie paid tax credits with what the oil industry
has provi ded.

Comm ssi oner Butcher spoke to the Departnent of Revenue's
prudent investnent practices. The departnent is the state’s
| argest investnment nanager. He reiterated that the state
just received an AAA upgrade thus receiving the | owest cost
of borrow ng.

The departnment has continued to work with the Permanent
Fund Dividend Division and the Child Support Services
Division to inprove their business and be in touch with the
public. The departnent's corporations receive national
recognition for their exenplary program managenent and
fiscal solvency and provide valuable services to the state.

3:35: 14 PM
Representati ve Doogan observed that a bill was introduced
in the House that would nove $10 billion from the Pernanent

Fund to the general fund. He questioned what problens such
a nove would occur. Conm ssioner Butcher agreed to discuss
t he issue.

Representative Costello echoed Co-Chair Thomas' concerns
with anticipated future declines. She observed that at the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



current rate of government growh the state would operate
in the red by 2015 and cash reserves would be depleted by
2025. She asked how the departnent is responding to the
i nformati on. Conmi ssi oner But cher observed that t he
departnent has worked hard to keep general fund growth | ow.
He enphasi zed that prudent nanagenent can nean nore state
funds. He hoped to help nove the red line further into the
di st ance.

Representative Costell o observed that half of the CBR has a
2.6 percent gromh rate, while other funds receive a
greater rate. She asked if the departnment would recomend
that funds be invested el sewhere to have "our nobney work
for us in ways that we haven't thought of in the past."”
Comm ssi oner But cher agr eed and suggest ed further
di versification but enphasized the need to be prudent and
conservative wth investnents. He recalled a nove from
short-term to long-term investnent that resulted in a |oss
of billions.

3:40: 06 PM

Representative Costell o asked the best approach in terns of
the unfunded liability. Conm ssioner Butcher responded that
the departnment was working to determne the best way to
handl e the unfunded liability. He |ooked forward to being
involved in the process. He explained that ultimately it
was a question for policy nakers and the admnistration
novi ng forward.

Vice-chair Fairclough asked if there had been discussions
regarding the TRS unfunded liability. She thought the TRS
system was nore unbalanced due to the 20 year and out

[ teachers’ retirenent] provi si on. She asked whether

sonmething was being done for new teachers entering the
system Comm ssioner Butcher replied that the switch from
the Defined Contribution System to the Defined Benefit

System inpacted TRS as nuch as it had inpacted PERS.

Di scussions have occurred on how to nove forward with a
"big picture” coll ected issue. He acknow edged the
di screpancy between the two prograns.

Vice-chair Fairclough referred to testinony from David
Teal, Director, Legislative Finance D vision, who explained
that a paynment of $2 billion (front |oaded cost) could fix
the PERS system but it would take $4 billion to fix the
TRS system

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 01/23/12 12:33 P. M



M. Burnett explained the enployer cost in PERS is 22
percent but TRS is only 12.5 percent. The enployer is not
making the sane contribution in TRS so there would be a
| arger legislative contribution.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough concluded that the state makes up the
difference from12.5 percent to 40 percent.

#

ADJ OURNVENT

3:44: 31 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:44 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 27 01/ 23/ 12 12:33 P. M



